
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

May 21, 2013

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

Prayer will be offered by Councillor Hobson.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 13

Public Hearing - April 23, 2013

Regular Meeting - April 23, 2013

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10841 (HD13-0001) - Heritage Designation Bylaw "Copeland House" -
0874309 BC Ltd., 784 Elliot Avenue

14 - 14

To give Bylaw No. 10841 second and third readings.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10840 (HRA12-0001) - Heritage Revitalization Agreement
Authorization Bylaw, 0874309 BC Ltd., 784 Elliot Avenue

15 - 39

To give Bylaw No. 10840 second and third readings.

4.3 Bylaw No. 10746 (OCP12-0010) - City of Kelowna, Miscellaneous Amendments 40 - 43

To give Bylaw No. 10746 second and third readings and be adopted.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. Mayor to invite
anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the required



variance(s) to come forward.

6.1 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP13-0038 - The Pit Stop C-
Store & Gas Bar Ltd., 3802 Gordon Drive

44 - 58

To vary the area of the proposed free standing sign from 3.0m² permitted to
5.9 m² proposed.

6.2 Heritage Alteration Permit Application No. HAP13-0001 - Edward and Marilyn
Wiltshire, 1979 Abbott Street

59 - 72

To consider not authorizing a Heritage Alteration Permit for proposed changes
to the dwelling and legitimize the side yard setback from 4.5m required to
0.0m proposed. 

6.3 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP13-0037 - Rory and Donna
Gatenby, 286 Atwood Place

73 - 86

To vary the north side yard setback from 2.0m required to 1.0m proposed to
legalize the construction of a storage shed to be added to the footprint of the
main house.

7. Reminders

8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 26th, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: DVP13-0038 Owner: 
The Pit Stop C-Store & Gas Bar Ltd., Inc. No. 
BC056689 

Address: 3802 Gordon Drive Applicant: Five Star Permits 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Commercial 

Existing Zone: C2 – Neighbourhood Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0038 for Lot A 
D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 40137, located at 3802 Gordon Drive, Kelowna, B.C.;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Sign Bylaw No. 8325 be granted: 
 
Section 6.1 – Permitted Area of Freestanding Signs in the C2 zone: 
To vary the area for projecting signs in the C2 zone from 3.0m² permitted to 5.9 m² proposed as 
per schedule ‘A’. 

2.0 Purpose  

To vary the area of the proposed free standing sign from 3.0m² permitted to 5.9 m² proposed.  

3.0 Land Use Management  

Generally, Land Use Management does not support variances to the Sign Bylaw due to the 
proliferation of signage in various areas of the City.  Notably, the overuse of signage (both in 
number of signs and size) detracts from the architectural quality and finishing of many buildings, 
and ultimately adds to the visual clutter of commercial areas. The proposal contemplates 
replacing the existing free standing sign with a sign that is the same height but has a larger sign 
area.  
 
While the proposed variance would almost double the allowable signage area it is still well below 
the maximum 12m² limit allowed in various other commercial zones. Although the subject 
property is zoned C2 – Neighbourhood Commercial, Gordon Drive has become much busier and 
the property provides services to users beyond the immediate neighbourhood. While Staff would 
not want to see a sign larger than is currently proposed, Staff are supportive of this application 

44



DVP13-0001 - Page 2 

 
 

as the sign has been well integrated into the site and is less than the maximum height permitted 
so that the larger sign won’t be visible from the adjacent residence. Additionally, the property is 
well landscaped and only the letters, logo and price information will be illuminated. The 
background will remain opaque blue as outlined in the applicant’s letter of rationale.      
 
4.0   Proposal 
4.1 Site Context 

 
The subject property is located at the corner of Cook Road and Gordon Drive. Adjacent zones and 
land uses are: 
 

Direction Zone(s) Land Use(s) 

North RU5 – Bareland Strata Housing Residential  

South C2 – Neighbourhood Commercial Commercial  

East A1 – Agriculture 1 Agriculture 

West RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Residential 

 
4.2 Project Description 

The applicant wishes to have the existing free standing sign replaced with a larger free standing 
sign that exceeds the area allowed for the C2 – Neighbourhood Commercial zone. The sign will be 
the same height and placed in the same location. The design will be updated to match the Husky 
corporate signage scheme.  
 
The proposal compares to the Sign Bylaw 8235 requirements as follows:  
 

45



DVP13-0001 - Page 3 

 
 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL C2 SIGN REQUIREMENTS 

Signage Area 5.9m² 3.0m² 

Height 2.75m 3.0m 

¹ Vary the area for a free standing sign in the C2 zone from 3.0m² permitted to 5.9m² proposed. 

 
5.0  Current Development Policies    
5.1.1 Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14) – Revitalization Design Guidelines 
 
Signage 

 Design signage that is high quality, imaginative, and innovative; 

 Design signage with consideration of the size of any individual sign as part of the overall 
scheme of building signage and the appearance of the building’s façade. Scale and 
architectural expression should not be compromised by size and number of signs; 

 Box signs are strongly discouraged; 

 Incorporate concise messaging and simple graphics into signage. Corporate and store logos 
are appropriate only if they form part of an overall sign design, and are suitably scaled to 
the façade composition; 

 Light lettering on a dark background is preferred over dark lettering on a light background 
and consideration should be given to those with visual impairment; 

 Minimize signage lighting (i.e., incorporate indirect front-lit signs wherever possible); 

 Counter-balance illuminated signs with natural materials and appropriate framing. 
 

6.0   Technical Comments     
6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

Building Permit required. 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 
This application to vary the number of signs does not compromise any municipal services.  
 

7.0  Application Chronology 
 
Date of Application Received: March 11th, 2013 
 
 
     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner 
 

Reviewed by:           Danielle Noble, Manager of Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:         Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 
 
Attachments: 
Site Plan 
Sign Elevations & Details 
Applicant’s Letter of Rationale 

46



 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:  DVP13-0038 

 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 

 
C2 – Neighbourhood Commercial  

 

To vary the area for projecting signs in the C4 zone from 3.0m² permitted to 
5.9 m² proposed as per schedule ‘A’. 

 

 
ISSUED TO:         Five Star Permits 
  

  LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:   3802 Gordon Drive 
 

 

 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

A  134  ODYD 40137 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Development Permit and/or Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw 
unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be 
granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been 
identified as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

THAT variances to the following sections of Sign Bylaw No. 8325 be granted: 
 

Section 6.1 – Permitted Area of Freestanding Signs in the C2 zone: 
To vary the area for projecting signs in the C4 zone from 3.0m² permitted to 5.9 m² proposed as per schedule ‘A’. 

 
3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and provisions 

of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part hereof. 
 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of this 

Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer the 

Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 

47



- 2 - 
  DVP13-0038 
 

 

 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
 

4. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is returned.  
The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the development hereby 
authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, the Municipality may use 
the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the 
Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by this Permit within the time set out 
above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $        N/A                . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of N/A 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of N/A      
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the City 

with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes and costs 
have been paid. 

 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in support 

of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the Permit for me by 
the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually indemnify the 
Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property owned 
in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, directly or 
indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, the 

Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any building or 
part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works or other works 
called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Director of 
Planning & Development Services. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 

48



- 3 - 
  DVP13-0038 
 

 

______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE 21
st
 DAY OF MAY, 2013. 

 

ISSUED BY THE LAND USE MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___ DAY OF MAY, 2013 BY THE 

DIRECTOR OF LAND USE MANAGEMENT. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 
A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 25, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-60 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: HAP13-0001 Owner: 
Edward Steven & Marilyn 
Anne Wiltshire 

Address: 1979 Abbott Street Applicant: Doug Clark 

Subject: Heritage Alteration Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Single/Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council NOT authorize the issuance of Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP13-0001, Lot 1, 
District Lot 14, ODYD plan 3998, located on 1979 Abbott Street, Kelowna, B.C. 

2.0 Purpose   

To consider not authorizing a Heritage Alteration Permit for proposed changes to the dwelling 
and legitimize the side yard setback from 4.5m required to 0.0m proposed.      

3.0 Land Use Management   

The Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area Guidelines summarize the significant exterior 
building features by identifying their design style. In the guidelines, the dominant style of this 
property is identified as Late Vernacular Cottage.   
 
The dwelling originated as a simple summer cottage and has been upgraded to function as a 
single family dwelling. The siting of the building is non-conforming under current regulations. The 
applicant states that the building does not have a crawl space which is jeopardizing the stability 
of the structure. Additionally, an upgrade to the building services to address potential gases is 
proposed, which would require lifting the building 2.0m. A garage is proposed for under rear 
portion of the dwelling. The habitual space of the dwelling will not be expanded, however a 
variance to the side yard setback is triggered.   
 
Staff recognize the value in constructing a secure and accessible foundation, however, the extent 
to which the building is being lifted greatly impacts the proportions and massing of the dwelling. 
The Building and Permitting branch comments clarify that a soil gas depressurization system 
upgrade is not required by Municipal or Provincial authorities. Therefore Staff do not support the 

59



HAP13-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

proposal that compromises some of the characteristics noteworthy of the Late Vernacular 
Cottage guidelines, given that no redeeming qualities are introduced to the house.  Although the 
property is small, there are alternative possible solutions that meet the Abbott Street 
Conservation Guidelines. Further, the Community Heritage Committee did not support the 
proposal for similar reasons. 
 
It is acknowledged that due to the subject property’s size and corner location constraints, any 
development will trigger variance to legalize non-conforming side yard setbacks which could be 
supportable, pending on the upgrades to the overall property.  

4.0 Proposal 
4.1 Background 

A basement is being proposed for the single family dwelling located on the subject property.  
Given the Mill Creek flood plain and the proximity to the lake, no opportunity exists to submerge 
a portion of the basement in the ground, therefore the applicant is seeking to raise the dwelling 
and construct a basement on the current footings. This will result in the building being raised by 
1.98m which impacts the form and character of the dwelling. 
 
The rear entry mud room will be removed to accommodate the plan. No windows or doors are 
proposed for the basement with the exception of a single car garage which would be located 
underneath the rear portion of the dwelling with access from the lane. An internal door will 
provide access from the garage to the main dwelling.  
 
Originally, a traditional lattice cladding was proposed around the lower portion of the building, 
however given the CHC concerns, the proposed cladding was revised to horizontal hardie board 
plank lap siding. This material has greater longevity than the lattice treatment, however the 
building still appears disproportional. The staircase to the existing verandah is increased to 14 
steps creating a disjointed pedestrian interface to the street. No changes are proposed to the 
existing landscaping. 
 
The applicant has provided a rationale outlining their concerns and justification for a crawl 
space. They fear that sub-floor gasses may be present and note that the proposal’s intent is not a 
“...cosmetic overhaul but rather an opportunity to understand the condition of the ground and 
avoid any further deterioration of the building”.   
 
Comments provided by the Building and Permitting branch note: 
“For all new dwellings, the new code requires a system for a future soil gas depressurization, but 
it is only required if test results by the owner warrant a complete active 24 hours a day system. A 
full system is not required in the code as of yet for buildings built under previous code cycles. To 
raise the house to increase the level of life safety is not a mandate of the province and most 
likely not be anytime soon. The City has thousands of houses that would require remediation to 
meet this requirement. The foundation could be retrofitted and lowered back to it’s existing 
elevation without compromising life and safety requirements.” 
 
There is an ample boulevard between the subject property and Beach Avenue however the 
dwelling is located on the lot line with the most eastern eave encroaching on the boulevard and 
is considered existing non-conforming. To facilitate lifting the building, all non-conformities must 
be legalized through the HAP which is the tool to authorize a variance. A variance to the north 
flanking street side yard setback from 4.5m required to 0.0m is proposed. The applicant is 
proposing to remove the encroachment should the application be favorably endorsed.   

60



HAP13-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

 4.2 Site Context  
 
The subject property is located on the east side of Abbott Street within the ‘Abbott Street 
Conservation Area’ and in close proximity to Downtown Kelowna.  The property is not on the 
Heritage register. All properties surrounding the subject property are zoned RU1 with single 
family dwellings. 
 
4.3  Subject Property Map:  1979 Abbott Street 

 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone follows:   

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS   

Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 347 m2  
 550 m2 

Lot Width 21.22 m 15 m 

Lot Depth 29.49 m  30.0 m 

Site Coverage (buildings) 23.6% 40% 

Site Coverage 
(buildings/parking) 

 29% 50% 

Height   5.05m 2 ½ storeys  / 9.5m 

Other Requirements 

Parking Stalls (#) 2 spaces 2 spaces 

 Existing non-conforming property size 

 Existing non-conforming property depth 

 
 

61



HAP13-0001 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

Heritage Conservation Area Development Guidelines 
 
The subject property falls within the third civic phase spans from the end of the Great 
Depression, about 1933, and continues to the 
end of World War II, 1945. This period is 
noted for a declining interest in traditional 
styles in favour of smaller, less ornately 
detailed housing development. The dominate 
styles of this period are the Late Vernacular 
Cottage and the ‘forward looking’ Moderne 
architecture. However, well-to-do members 
of Kelowna’s leading civic and commercial 
families continued to build large homes of 
more traditional style. 
 
The Late Vernacular Cottage characteristics 
are identified as follows in the City’s Heritage Conservation Area Development Guidelines:  

• Less fanciful feel to the architecture 
• Flush gable verges 
• Stucco or horizontal siding 
• Up to 2 storey massing 
• Clustered vertical window sashes 
• Asymmetrical facade design 
• Flush front entrance 
• Minor decorative detailing 
• Gable roof forms 
• Wood or interlocking asphalt shingle 
• Side or rear yard parking 
 

5.2    Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)  

Heritage Policies1 

Objective 9.2 Identify and conserve heritage resources. 
Conservation Areas. Development in the Abbott Street and Marshall Street Heritage Conservation 
Area outlined on Map 9.1 will be assessed using the Abbott Street and Marshall Street Heritage 
Conservation Area Guidelines in Chapter 16. 
 
Heritage Conservation Area - Objectives: 2 

• Maintain the residential and historical character of the Marshall Street and the Abbott Street 
Heritage Conservation Areas; 

• Encourage new development, additions and renovations to existing development which are 
compatible with the form and character of the existing context; 

• Ensure that change to buildings and streetscapes will be undertaken in ways which offer 
continuity of the ‘sense-of-place’ for neighbours, the broader community; and 

• Provide historical interest for visitors through context sensitive development. 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna, Official Community Plan, Chapter  9; Objective 9.2  Policy .4 
2 City of Kelowna, Official Community Plan, Chapter 16 

62



HAP13-0001 – Page 5 

 
 

6.0   Technical Comments   

6.1  Building & Permitting Department 

In regards to your verbal request for clarification on the new 2012 building code for soil gas 
depressurization the following applies: 

For all new dwellings, the new code requires a system for a future soil gas 
depressurization, but it is only required if test results by the owner warrant a complete 
active 24 hours a day system. A full system is not required in the code as of yet for 
buildings built under previous code cycles. To raise the house to increase the level of life 
safety is not a mandate of the province and most likely not be anytime soon. The City has 
thousands of houses that would require remediation to meet this requirement. The 
foundation could be retrofitted and lowered back to it’s existing elevation without 
compromising life and safety requirements.  
Building Permit required. 

6.2   Development Engineering Department 

The Heritage Alteration Permit application to lift present building ~2m to inspect/repair 
the footings as needed, will not compromise our servicing requirements.  The building 
encroachments should either be removed or if necessary a license to occupy be registered 
with the City. 

No municipal service upgrades will be triggered by this application. 

It is the applicant’s responsibility to make a servicing application with the respective 
electric power, telephone and cable transmission companies to arrange for service 
upgrades to these services which would be at the applicant’s cost. 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: February 15, 2013  

Community Heritage Commission   

The above noted application was reviewed by the Community Heritage Commission at the 
meeting on March 7, 2013 and the following recommendations were passed: 

THAT the Community Heritage Committee NOT support Heritage Alteration Permit No.  
HAP13-0001 for 1979 Abbott Street seeking to lift the dwelling and legitimize the side yard 
setback from 4.5 m to required 0.0 m. 

 
ANECTODAL COMMENT:  

The Community Heritage Committee believes the proposed building would not be consistent 
with the form and character of the Heritage Conservation Area.   

8.0 Alternate Recommendation    

THAT Council authorize the issuance of a Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP13-0001, for Lot 1, 
District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3998, located on 1979 Abbott Street, Kelowna, BC  subject to the 
following:  
 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general  
 accordance with Schedule “A”;  

 

63



HAP13-0001 – Page 6 

 
 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in  
general accordance with Schedule “B”.  

 
AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  
 

Section 13.1.6 (d) –Development Regulations: 

To vary the flanking side yard setback from 4.5m required to 0.0m proposed, as per 
schedule “A”.    

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, acting General Manager,  
Community Sustainability 

 

Attachments:   

Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Rationale  

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 26, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: DVP13-0037 Owner: 
Rory Peter & Donna Lee 
Gatenby 

Address: 286 Atwood Place Applicant: 
Rory Peter & Donna Lee 
Gatenby 

Subject: Development Variance Permit   

Existing OCP Designation: Single/ Two Residential  

Existing Zone: RU1- Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0037, for Lot B, 
District Lot 14, ODYD Plan KAP73616 located on 286 Atwood Place, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 13.1.6 (d) Development Regulations: 
  
             To vary the north side yard setback from 2.0m permitted to 1.0m proposed (Schedule A). 

2.0 Purpose   

To vary the north side yard setback from 2.0m required to 1.0m proposed to legalize the 
construction of a storage shed to be added to the footprint of the main house. 

3.0 Land Use Management   

The applicant has recently purchased the subject property and is seeking a solution to a storage 
issue by adding a shed to the north side yard where the impact to the subject property and 
adjoining neighbour would be minimized. The shed was constructed as an addition to the 
dwelling, therefore becoming part of the dwelling foot print and triggering a variance to the 
required side yard.   

Signatures of support have been received from all abutting and adjoining neighbours. The shed is 
proposed to be marginally taller than the existing fence, and is seen to be a modest request that 
is endorsed by impacted property owners.     

73



DVP13-0037 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The applicant began construction of a shed in the most appropriate location given the lakefront 
location and the neighbour’s site lines. The property owner’s did not apply for a building permit 
to construct the storage shed as it was to be less than 100 square feet and initially shorted than 
the fence. Unfortunately, the applicant was unfamiliar with the Zoning Bylaw’s siting 
requirements and is applying for the variance after starting construction.  

As part of this application, the shed will be attached to the principal dwelling (and be considered 
part of the principal dwelling) to avoid two variances and fire separation concerns. The finishing, 
roof line, and fascia of the shed will match the dwelling (which is being upgraded).   

4.2 Project Description 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the South Pandosy area between the hospital and the lake. The 
area is characterized by established single family homes. The adjacent land uses in all directions 
is RU1 - Large Lot housing. 

4.4 Subject Property Map: 286 Atwood Place 

  
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 550 m2 877 m2 

Lot Width 16.5m 18.3m 

Lot Depth 30m 48 m 

74



DVP13-0037 – Page 3 

 
 

Development Regulations 

Front Yard 6.55 m 
4.5 m to dwelling or 6.0m to 

garage 

Side Yard (south) 2.1 m 2.0m (1 - 1 ½ storey) 

Side Yard (north) 1.0 m 2.0m (1 - 1 ½ storey) 

Rear Yard 12.35m 7.5m 

  Variance sought to reduce the north side yard from 2.0m required to 1.0m proposed. 

5.0 Technical Comments   

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

Full foundations required around building addition per the requirements of the Building 
Code. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

This development variance permit application to vary the side yard setback does not 
compromise any municipal services.  

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
  

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, 
Community Sustainability 

 

Attachments:   

Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Rationale 

75



 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:  DVP13-0037 

 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 

 
RU1- Large Lot Housing  
 
To vary the required north side yard setback to facilitate  a building 
addition  

 

 
ISSUED TO:          Rory Peter & Donna Lee Gatenby 
  

  LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:    286 Atwood Place 
 

 

 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

B   14   ODYD KAP73616 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Development Permit and/or Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw 
unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be 
granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been 
identified as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 13.1.6 (d): Development Regulations  
To vary the north side yard setback from 2.0m permitted to 1.0m proposed, as per Schedule ‘A’.  

 
2. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and provisions 

of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part hereof. 
 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of this 

Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer the 

Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 

76



- 2 - 
  DVP13-0037 

 

 

3 PERFORMANCE SECURITY: Not applicable. 
 
  
4. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in support 

of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the Permit for me by 
the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually indemnify the 
Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property owned 
in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, directly or 
indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, the 

Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any building or 
part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works or other works 
called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Director of 
Planning & Development Services. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE  ___
th

 DAY OF MAY, 2013. 

 

ISSUED BY THE ACTING GENERAL MANAGER OF COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___ DAY 

OF MAY, 2013. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 

Acting General Manager, Community Sustainability 

77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86


	Agenda
	3. April 23 - Public Hearing Minutes.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. April 23 - Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 BL10841 - Copeland House Heritage Designation Bylaw.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 BL10840 - Heritage Revitalization Agreement - HRA-12-0001 - 784 Elliott.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 BL10746 - OCP Text Amendment No. OCP12-0010.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 DVP13-0038_Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 DVP13-0038 - Permit.doc
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 dvp13-0038 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 HAP13-0001 Council .docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 hap13-0001 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 DVP13-0037COUNCIL.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 DVP draft Permit.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 dvp13-0037 attachment 2.pdf
	Back to Agenda


